
    Whatcom County Contract No. 

Originating Department: 
Division/Program: (i.e. Dept. Division and Program) 
Contract or Grant Administrator: 
Contractor’s / Agency Name: 

Is this a New Contract? If not, is this an Amendment or Renewal to an Existing Contract? Yes  No  
Yes   No  If Amendment or Renewal, (per WCC 3.08.100 (a)) Original Contract #: 

Does contract require Council Approval? Yes  No  If No, include WCC: 
Already approved?  Council Approved Date:     (Exclusions see: Whatcom County Codes 3.06.010, 3.08.090 and 3.08.100) 

Is this a grant agreement? 
If yes, grantor agency contract number(s): CFDA#: Yes   No   

Is this contract grant funded? 
If yes, Whatcom County grant contract number(s): Yes   No   

Is this contract the result of a RFP or Bid process? Contract 
Cost Center: Yes   No  If yes, RFP and Bid number(s): 

Is this agreement excluded from E-Verify? No  Yes  If no, include Attachment D Contractor Declaration form. 

If YES, indicate exclusion(s) below: 
  Professional services agreement for certified/licensed professional. 
  Contract work is for less than $100,000.   Contract for Commercial off the shelf items (COTS).
  Contract work is for less than 120 days.  Work related subcontract less than $25,000.
  Interlocal Agreement (between Governments).   Public Works - Local Agency/Federally Funded FHWA.

 

Contract Amount:(sum of original contract 
amount and any prior amendments): 

Council approval required for; all property leases, contracts or bid awards exceeding 
$40,000, and professional service contract amendments that have an  increase greater 
than $10,000 or 10% of contract amount, whichever is greater,  except when:  
1. Exercising an option contained in a contract previously approved by the council.
2. Contract is for design, construction, r-o-w acquisition, prof. services, or other 

capital costs approved by council in a capital budget appropriation ordinance.
3. Bid or award is for supplies.
4. Equipment is included  in Exhibit “B” of the Budget Ordinance.
5. Contract is for manufacturer’s technical support and hardware maintenance of 

electronic systems and/or technical support and software maintenance from the
developer of proprietary software currently used by Whatcom County.

  $   
This Amendment Amount: 
  $   
Total Amended Amount: 
  $ 

Summary of Scope: 

Term of Contract: Expiration Date:  
Contract Routing: 1. Prepared by: Date:  

2. Attorney signoff: Date:  
3. AS Finance reviewed: Date:  
4. IT reviewed (if IT related): Date:  
5. Contractor signed: Date:  
6. Submitted to Exec.: Date:  
7. Council approved (if necessary): Date:  
8. Executive signed: Date:  
9. Original to Council: Date:  
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INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
WHATCOM COUNTY AND THE WHATCOM COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

 
REGARDING ADMINISTRATION OF BOUNDARY REVIEW BOARD 

PER CHAPTER 36.93 RCW 
 

This Interlocal Agreement by and between the government of Whatcom County (hereinafter, “the 
County”) and the Whatcom Council of Governments (hereinafter, “WCOG”) – hereinafter together 
referred to as “the Parties” – is entered into pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 36.93 RCW for the 
purposes of performing the duties of a Boundary Review Board of Whatcom County. 

 
WHEREAS, under Chapter 36.93.030 RCW the county is required to have established an active 

Boundary Review Board, and 
 

WHEREAS, there is a Boundary Review Board which was previously established and is 
currently active in Whatcom County; and  

 
WHEREAS, under Chapter 36.93.070 there is required to be a Chief Clerk to oversee the activities 

of the Boundary Review Board. The County desires to have a Chief Clerk appointed to the position, and it 
is in the best interest of the County to utilize an outside entity for such purposes. This will provide the 
citizens of Whatcom County impartial review, based on the consideration of specific legal factors and 
objectives, of proposed boundary changes. Most proposed boundary changes are settled through the 
Board process, without the need and cost of adjudication; and 

 
WHEREAS, WCOG has agreed to administer and oversee the activities of the Boundary Review 

Board, including the appointment of a Chief Clerk.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED THAT the government of Whatcom County and the Whatcom 
Council of Governments will abide by the following terms regarding the administration of the 
Boundary Review Board: 

 
Section 1. WCOG Responsibilities 

 

WCOG agrees to provide staff support and a Chief Clerk who will oversee the activities and 
requirements of the Whatcom County Boundary Review Board in accordance with the Rules of Practice 
and Procedure under Chapter 36.93.200 RCW; as more fully and definitively described in Exhibit A 
hereto. WCOG will administer all activities of the Boundary Review Board, including the review and 
decision-making process for annexations, specific water/sewer extensions, incorporations, dissolutions 
and disincorporation of jurisdictions and partial mergers and consolidations of special purpose districts. 
 
WCOG will maintain board membership records and all communications with board members. It will 
work with the County as well as Special Districts and the Washington State Governor’s office in the 
process of appointments and reappointments to board membership. WCOG further agrees to maintain 
all board agendas and minutes, communications, findings, and related documentation of board 
activities per State archive regulations. Additionally, WCOG will maintain a webpage on their website 
with information about board membership and activities. 

 
Section 2. Funding 

 

The County agrees to provide funding to a maximum amount of $5,000, which will assist in providing 
staffing costs associated with the Chief Clerk of the Boundary Review Board. The County agrees to 
reimburse WCOG following the latter’s submittal to the County of invoices detailing services provided, 
no more frequently than quarterly. 



Section 3. Administrative Responsibilities 

The County administrative officer for the purpose of this Agreement is: 

Tyler Schroeder, Deputy County 
Executive  
Whatcom County Courthouse 
311 Grand Avenue, Suite 108 
Bellingham, WA 98225 

The WCOG administrative officer for the purpose of this Agreement is: 

Robert H. Wilson, Executive Director 
Whatcom Council of Governments 
314 East Champion Street 
Bellingham, WA 98225 

Section 4. Effective Date, Duration, Amendment and Termination 

This Agreement shall be effective upon approval and signature by the Whatcom County Executive and 
the Executive Director of the Whatcom Council of Governments and it shall have a term of one year 
commencing on January 1, 2022 and expiring on December 31, 2022. This agreement can be terminated 
or amended by mutual agreement of the Parties. The term of this agreement may be extended by 
mutual written consent of the parties, for a period of up to one year at a time, and for a total of no 
longer than three years. 

Section 6. Relationship of the Parties 

The Parties agree that they are each an independent entity operating pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. No agent, employee or representative of any party shall be deemed to be 
an agent, employee or representative of any other party for any purpose. Each party shall be solely and 
entirely responsible for the acts of its agents and employees during the term of this Agreement. 

Section 7. Indemnification 

Each party, as an indemnitor, agrees to protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the other party 
from and against all claims, suits and actions arising from the intentional or negligent acts or omissions 
of such indemnitor, its agents or employees in the performance of this Agreement. 

Section 8. Extent of Agreement 

This Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties. The Parties agree 
that there are no other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have signed this agreement, effective on the dates indicated below. 
 
Each signatory below to this agreement warrants that he/she is the authorized agent of the respective 
party; and that he/she has the authority to enter into the agreement and bind the party thereto. 

 
Whatcom County 

 
 

By   
Satpal Sidhu, County Executive 

 
Date  

 

Approved as to form: 
 
 

Whatcom County Prosecutor 
 
 

Whatcom Council of Governments 
 
 

By   
Robert H. Wilson, Executive Director 

 
Date  

 
 
  



Exhibit A





--------------------------------------------------------
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